Company 1R'e\9i$ti‘5156n,~u:‘hbei": 07665364 (England & Wales)

AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

* ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

'FOR THE YEAR ENDED.31 AUGUST 2021

I

A10 27/04/2022 #69
COMPANIES HOUSE

WEDNESDAY



AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

CONTENTS

. Page
Reference and administrative details - 4 ‘ ‘ : 1-2
Trustees' report ' _ ' : 3-17
Govemanée statement - 18-22
Statement on regUIarity, bropriety and cdmpliance o 23
Statement of Trustees' responsibilities ' ‘ 24
Independent auditors’ report on the financial statements 25-28
Independent repoftiné _aééountant‘s report on fegularity : A 2930

~ ‘Consolidated statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure 31 -32
. ‘account C : .

Consolidated balance sheet . , - ‘ 33-34
Academy balance sheet. - R 35:-36
Consolidated statement of cash flows 37

Notes to the financial statements - . 38-68



AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS

Simon Barry Member (appornted 17 December 2020)
Natalie Breeze - Member

Michael Hodges - Member (appornted 17 December 2020)
Patricia Steel - Member

The. Worcester Drocesan Academres Trust Member

Trustees

Andrew Longdon, (Charr) (Dlocesan)
Rob Phrllrps (Vrce Charr)

‘ Penelope Anstey

Rachel ‘Callaghan

Clive. Corbett, (Executive Officer and Accountrng ‘Officer) (resigned 28. January

2021)

lan Cumming -

_Julia Hayes. (resrgned 4 September 2020)
Karen Rutter

Ma_rk Slater

Bob Sta'ritéh

. Company registered number

07665364

Company name.
Avonreach Academy Trust
Principal and registered office

Station Road, Pershore, Worcestershire; WR102BX

Page 1



AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Company secretary
Karen Bevan (Chief Financial and Operations Officer)
Chief executive officer
Clive Corbett (Accounting Officer)
Executive Leadership Team
Clive Corbett
Karen Bevan
_ Sarah Bitcon

Julia Dean

Glenn Duggan-Seville

Phil Hanson
_Independent auditors

- Randall & Payne LLP, Chargrove House, Shurdington Road, Shurdington, Cheltenham, Gloucestershire,
GL51 4GA ‘ ’

Bankers
Lloyds, PO Box 1000, BX1 1LT
Solicitors

Browne Jacobson, Victoria Square House, Victoria Square, Birmingham, B2 4BU

Page 2



AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT :
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

The trustees present their annual report together with the fi nancral statements and auditors' report of the
vchantable company for the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021. The annual report serves the purposes
-of both a trustees' report and a directors’ report under company law. ‘

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the accounting polrcres set out in note 1to the accounts
and comply with ‘the charitable company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, the Companies Act 2006,
-and the Statemerit of Recommended Practice 2019, ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities’, and- the
Academles Accounts Dlrectron 2020/21 issued by the ESFA

The principal object of the company is the advancement of education in the United Krngdom It achieves this
object principally’ through the operation of 4 schools: in rural Worcestershlre

Inkberrow Primary School

Norton Juxta Kempsey Primary School
Orchard-Primary School

Pershore High Schoo!

The aim being to provide the highest standard of education and pastoral care for the commumty and to prepare
its puplls for lifeina global socrety

The Trust has a roll of 1790 in the school census return dated 7th October 2021.
Structure, governance and management
Constitution

The Academy is a-charitable company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company’s
Memorandum of Association is the primary governing document of the Academy.The trustees of Avonreach
Academy Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law.The charitable
company is known as Avonreach Academy Trust. Details of the trustees who served during the year, and to the
date these accounts are approved are included in the Reference and administrative details on page 1.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company'm the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a member.

Trustees’ indemnities

In accordance with normal commercial practice the Academy Trust provides indemnity insurance to.cover the
liability of Trustees which by virtue of any rule of law would otherwise attach to them in respect of any
negligence, default, breach of trust or breach of duty of which they may be guilty-in relation to the Trust
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Structure, governance and management (continued)

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The maximum number of trustees permitted under the Trust's Articles of Association is 12 at any time. The
Diocesan Board of Education is entitled to appoint up to 3 trustees, providing that the total number of trustees
appointed does not exceed 25% of the total number of trustees. Trustees may appoint up to 2 trustees. All other
appointments to the Board must be made by the Members.

A -search group, compnsmg ‘of existing Members and trustees is- formed to oveérsee the selectlon -and
apporntment of new Members and trustees. -

- 'Trustees are. appomted for a four-year penod Subject to remalmng, any trustee can be reappointed or
reelected. . .

' Potlcles adopted for the.induction and training of Trustees

Tralmng is tallored specnf cally to the needs of the individual and the Board. Trustees aim to ensure that the
Board maintains the relevant skill -set-and an annual skills audit is undertaken to detormino trannmg needs.
‘Where necessary, training in charity, educational, legal and financial matters is. provided. To. suppoit the:
.effectiveness of the Board and to promote high . standards the Trust subscribes to the National Governance:
. Assomatron Ttustees, Local Governors and Clerks are encouraged to undertake all relevant training on offer

.Although it has not been possible during the pandemic, new Members and trustees are encouraged to visit all*
schools within the Trust and meet the Headteacher staff and pupils.

Al trustees are provrded with the information neéded (including policies, minutes, budgets etc.) to undertake -
their role via the secure governance portal. .
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" AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

: TRUSTEES‘ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Structure, governance and management (continued)

Organisational structure

The Board of Trustees comprises those persons appointed under the Articles of Association. The Board meets
formally at least six times per year. The Trust has arranged its business in such a way that responsibilities and
lines of accountability are clearly identified. The trustees are responsible for setting general policy, adopting an
annual plan and budget, monitoring financial and operational performance and making strategic decisions about
the operation and management of the Trust, including making senior staff appointments.

There are two main committees of the Board. which meet at regular intervals throughout the year. These - °
"committees provide the opportunity for detailed discussion and policy development. Decisions reached at
committee are reported to the Board and, where necessary, interim decisions are reported to the full Board for
ratification. A Pay Panel is also convened twice per year to consider pay recommendations following the
performance review cycle. Other Panels and working parties, with a particular focus,” are convened as
necessary ’ ‘
Trustees are responsible for the strateglc direction of the Trust and have the ultimiate demsnon-makmg authonty
This is exercised through the strategic planning process, undertaken by the Trust Board, and through the setting
of policy. It is managed through business planning, budget monitoring, performance management, the setting of -
standards and the implementation of quality management processes. In addition to the approval final budget
and audited accounts and statutory policies, trustees have reserved the power to approve the appointment of
Headteachers, Senior Leadership Team members, Chairs of Local Governing Boards (LGBs) and to approve
expenditure over prescribed amounts.

LGBs are established in all schools. LGBs have delegated authority through the Scheme of Delegation. for key
aspects of the running of the schools although the Trust Board retains formal accountability for their operation
and the strategic management and policies of the Trust as a whole. LGBs meet six times per year. As a
Diocesan school, Norton Juxta Kempsey Primary School also operates an Ethos and Communlty committee
that meets at least once a term. . )

Termly meetings bétween the Trust Board and Chairs of LGBs are also in place to promote and ensure
effective two way communication.

The LGBs are formally constituted with terms of reference and comprise appropriately qualified and
experienced members. Their activities are reported and discussed at meetings of the Trust Board.

The day to day management of the Trust is the responsibility of the Executive Officer, who is also Accountmg
Officer. The day to day running of each of the academies is delegated to the mdlwdual Headteachers and
leadership teams at each school.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

Arrangements for setting the pay and remuneration of the Trust's key management personnel are approved by
the Trust Board. The Trust's teachers’ pay policy is based on the national agreed pay scale as outlined in the
School Teachers Pay and Conditions Document. The Trust adheres to local government pay arrangements for
support staff and follows the local government pay scales. .
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AAVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Structure, gOv_ernanoe and management (continued)

Relateo parties and other connected charities and organisations

Owing to the nature of the Trust's operations and its close working relatlonshlps with the local public and private
.sector organisations, transactions may" take place -with, orgamsatlons in- which a trustee has an interest. All
transactions with such organisations are conducted at arm's length and-in accordance with the Trust's financial
'regulatuons Related party relationships are acknowledged at the trustees’ meetings and through the pecuniary
interest forms. Any ﬁnanc1a| transactlons are disclosed in the notes to the accounts.

;Pershore ngh ‘School has a tradmg company, and this is.a wholly owned subsidiary of the Academy Trust. The
tradlng company accounts are consolidated with the Trust's accounts.

"Objectives and activities
. - ‘Objects-and aims

The' @im of the Trust is to provide the higheést possible standard of education and pastoral care for the

. -community and to-maximise the life chances of pupils with a range of different abilities. It achieves this object.
" principally through the operation of 4 schools.in Worcestershlre ‘

Avonreach Academy Trust aims to be the natural choice for parents who aspire to. the best educational
outoomes for thelr children: from age 2 to 18. .
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Objectives and activities (continued)

Objectives, strategies and activities

The Trust's objectives are set out in its Articles of Association. Its principal objects are:

« advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom

¢ promote for the benefit of the inhabitants of Pershore and the surrounding area the provision of facalmes
for recreation or other leisure time occupation

To meet these aims, the Trust has developed its strategic plan outlining objectives to:

1. Setand achieve clear milestones of educational performance, safeguarding ahd personal development by:

a.
b.
c.

d.

ensuring that an appropriate level of curriculum is identified, planned, and dellvered with such limitations
of budget and resources that prevail;

defining and implementing the required educational standards at all Ievels havmg due regard for both
internal and external benchmarks;

continuing the development of robust A_safeguarding practices throughout the Trust, considering
guidelines from government and its agencies;

~defining and promoting a proactive culture of collaboration and cooperatuon across the Trust and its

component membership.

2. Define and achieve requisite standards in leadership, governance and stakeholder e'ngagement by:

a.
b.

c.
d.

identifying and specifying core determinants of leadership within the Trust and provide positive
encouragement to develop and embed these across the Trust;
embedding the role of the Trust Board as ‘Executive Leader' of the Trust and provide facnlltatlng support
to individual schools through clear standards of governance;

specifying and accommodating the key internal and external stakeholders of the Trust

actively promoting the health and well-being of all staff through embedding appropriate and robust
support services and strategies.

.3. " Secure the future growth and sustainability of the Trust through the focussed development of efficient and
effective financial, operational, and shared business services and a focus on environmental sustalnablhty
across the Trust, by:

a.

b.

C.

d.
e.

creating the roadmap for embedding a suitably experienced team to lead and further develop the
strategic direction of the Trust;

embedding robust, effective, and transparent financial and risk management systems and procedures
across the Trust;

exploring opportunities for the development and roll out of wider support services across the Trust,
including, school improvement, governance and operational management; ’ .
developing and implementing a marketing strategy for the Trust and its member schools;

developing and implementing strategies in relation to environmental sustainability.

Public benefit

In setting objectives and planning for activities, the trustees have given due consideration to general guidance
published by the Charity Commission relating to public benefit, including the guidance ‘Public benefit: running a
charity (PB2).

The Trust provides facilities for recreational and other leisure timé occupation for the community at large in the
interests of school welfare and with the interests of improving life in the local community.
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Strategic report
_Achievements and performance

The Trust has returned to financial stability and met its target to return to surplus by the 315 August 2021, as
agreed with the ESFA.

The schools of the ‘Avonreach. Academy Trust managed to sustain full opening during.the majority of the 2020--
-21 academic year. Where this was'not possible, high quality online provision was offered. Levels of pupil and .
staff attendance were high, reﬂectlng the confidence that parents and carers had in the protocols put in place to
facilitate safe learning experiences. It is agreed that it has long been time for the Trust and its schools to cast

E the spectre of COVID behind it: We are determined that our children should not be viewed as victims of the
" . pandemic but rather that they. ﬂounsh as creative individuals in a positive and stimulating learning envrronment

To support. transrtlon across phases grven the restrictions in place in school settings during term time, the-
- government promoted the running of ‘Summer Schools' over the 2021 summer holiday period. Pershore High
School opeérated its 5 day Summer School at the end of July. It proved to be hugely popular and was widely .
praised by parents and pupils involved. Staff from Pershore High School facilitated the delivery of. the summer

'school, which included both academic and ennchment activities.

-+ In relation to pupil performance the continuing absence of national data makes it difficult to judge progress in

the usual fashion. However, end of year school data for 2021 at primary leve! indicates that the majority of

-i- children were sufficiently back on track to have met their original targets. GCSE and A’ level results, through the

Centre Assessed Grading process, also indicate good performance and the high school reported few parental
appeals against the grades awarded. School reviews completed durrng the summer term of 2021 indicated.
good quality teaching and learning in the classroom that engaged children and provided a range of experiences.
Presentation of pupil work in books was very good and reflects consistent progress across the )'Iear.

Cumculum development this year has continued, wrth the intent/Implement/Impact approach in the ‘Ofsted
framework continuing to be ‘embedded in the primary schools. Curriculum documentation continues to include
Curriculum Guidance, Curriculum Iritent, Long term Curriculum Planning (including six vertical drivers' common
to all Trust primaries), Curriculum Fact Sheets, values and vision, non-negotiables (including marking). Topic
Development has spread across’ all areas and given the afore mentioned first transfer.from Year 6 to 7,
continuity of curriculum provision across primary to high is now written into Schemes of Work. The use of the
Insight tracking'system, ‘including the development of Trust-wide common assessment and reporting methods
have been a key feature of the last twelve months. The assessment cycle and spine of this are complete. All
staff in primary schools are now using Insight as their assessment tool to support data. Regular data updates

+.. are provided to the LGB and the Curriculum and Quality Committee of the Trust. This is now also used as the

basis for SEND Provision Mapping and report writing.

Progress has continued to be made in cross-Trust working over the course of the last twelve months, with the
introduction of a School Improvement offer at primary level, the establishment of the AAT Sports Association
and the setting up of common formats for SEFs, SIPs and head teacher reports just a few examples of joint
working. September 2021 saw the first entry of Year 7 pupils into Pershore High School, with over 140 young
people applying for the available 90. places. It was particularly exciting to see the Upper Key Stage 2 curricutum,.
so meticulously and lovingly developed, link through to Key Stage 3 for the first time, providing a smooth and
highly effective transition for the pupils'involved. The quality of induction was further enhanced by the use of a
half term transition project, written by High School staff to introduce children to aspects of the Year 7 currrculum
ahead. It is clear. that the children have settled swiftly and highly effectively into high school life.
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

S ‘ TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
’ FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

Collaboration between schools in the MAT continues to progress really well. Real deta|| has come together in
- thé Upper Key Stage 2 into Key Stage 3 curriculum and will be further assessed in the light of practice.

Extending the range of pupil leadership and staff development opportunities is. a key focus for the next twelve
‘months. Material promoting the benefits of belonging to Avonreach as a staff member, or attending an
.Avonreach school as a pupil, is starting to be prepared to support the promotion and. marketmg activities of the
Trust. The wellbeing of our young people and staff remain high priorities for the Trust, with the Ethos Committee
. -and Wellbeing working group overseelng these two respective areas.

Ke_y performance mdu_cators

The Trust uses the progress of pupils at Key Stages, GCSE and A' level as the main KPIs for the delivery of its
primary objective, together with retaining or improving on its Ofsted designations. )

The foilowing Key Performance Indicators have been set for the forthcoming académic year. Exact details are to
be found in the individual school head teacher performance management targets for 2021-22. Monitoring of
performance against theése targets will be carried out by LGBs at each school and also by the Education
Leadership Team on behalif of the Trust:

e To continue to secure improvements in the attainment and progress of all pupils in Trust schools, with a-

.specific focus upon the more able and those in vulnerable groups (SEND, LAC, and those in receipt of the
) Pupil Premium).

o Targets will relate to national performance requirements at EYFS Key Stage 1, Key Stage 2, GCSE and A’
levels, with precise data to be found in individual school head teacher objectives;

» To make clear, on-going diagnoses of pupils’ learning needs to inform what adaptations to the curriculum
-and teaching and leaming are required. To also adapt school development plans in the light.of such
changes,

¢ To build and maintain successful relationships across the schools, on developing the curficulum and the
.quality of education and on building leadership-capacity across the scheols;

o Further develop the use of tracking systems, including the development of Trust-wide common assessment
and reporting methods. ’
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' AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021 -

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)
Going concern

Permnssnon for the Trust to change its age range was, granted by the Regional Schools Commissioner's
.Headteacher Board on 15th December 2018 and Inkberrow Norton Juxta Kempsey and Orchard primaries
came into existence in September 2019. Despite the on-going pandemic, the first cohort of Year 7 students was
successfully transitioned to Pershore High School in September 2021. A public consuitation has recently been .
launched to review the current arrangements in the Pershore area, with a view to further changes from 2023.

‘Inline with the DfE's strong preference that Members should be independent of the Board of Trustees, the Trust
has made fuither changes to its governance structure to ensure appropriate separation between tiers of
governance. Members are no longer permitted to serve on the Trust Board or LGBs, and local Governors are

- not permitted to serve as trustees. in support of the DfE’s aim that Members should be “eyes on and hands off",
a termly update, one of which is the AGM, is provided to Members by the Chair of Trustees and the Executive
Officer.

.Similarly, in line with the’ DfE's strong preference for no employees to serve-as trustees, the Executive Officer,
who is also Accounting Officer, resigned his position as trustee in January 2021.

The Board has continued to work closely with the ESFA to secure its financial recovery. In May 2021, following’
the submission of an updated progress report, the Trust received confirmation from the ESFA that the
conditions set out within the Financial Notice to Improve Warning Letter have been satisfied and.that the
potential for the issue.of a Notice to Improve (Ntl) has been removed.

The letter acknowledges the decisive actions taken by the Trust to enable the significant progress made over
the last year to. meet the conditions set out in the Warning Letter and to stabilise its financial position. It notes
the unique challenges presented by the pandemic in doing so and also confirms that this work provides an:
- excellent basis for long-term sustainability.

After making appropriate enqumes the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Trust has
-adequaté resources 'to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues
to adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the financial statements. Further details regarding the adopt|on of
the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

Financial review

The Trust receives its income from a range of sources. The vast majority comes from central government in the
form of recurrent grants from Educations and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA). These grants and the associated
,expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the consolidated Statement of Financial Activities.

Fundmg is based largely on pupil numbers with an Age Weighted Pupil Unit (AWPU) allocation in line with pupil
numbers recorded in the October census. These funds form the ‘General Annual Grant' (GAG) and cover the'
- staffing and general running costs of the Trust. The ESFA also provide additional grants which are earmarked
for specific purposes, for example, Pupil Premium, which must be used to raise' attainment for disadvantaged
pupils. The Trust may also receive additional grants from the local authority; for example, SEND funding, where
the Trust fulfils responsubtlmes on behalf of the local authonty in respect of its pupils..

During the period the ESFA continued to provide grant funding to support the financial impact of increases to
teachers’ pay and pension fund contributions. Govemment funding was also made available to support the.
‘exceptional costs incurred by schools during the pandemic, for example, additional cleaning, sanitising and
- cleaning supplies, and provision of meals to those pupils eligible for Free School Meals In addition, catch up
- funding was made available to support students to access remote educatnon S|m||arly, funding was provided to
cover the costs of on-site mass lateral flow testing for students.

To mmgate’the loss of opportunlty for transition activities created by the restrictions in place as a result of the
on-going pandemic, the government promoted the use of ‘summer schools’ in the holiday period. The ESFA
provided funding to meet the costs associated with-the operation and delivery of the activities, including staff
costs..A claim for actual costs incurred in the running of the summer has been submitted and settlement is
pending. A provision has been included in these accounts in light of this expenditure.

- Other income received by the Trust includes that from parents (for wrap-around care, lettings etc.) or other third
parties, for example, donations, though such income declined during the pandemic. Other income may be
‘restricted’ or ‘unrestricted’ depending on whether it comes with conditions as to its use or whether it is available
for spending at the discretion of the trustees. The key income source for each school remains the GAG funding.

The Trust also receives grants for fixed assets from the ESFA for capital expenditure and building works. In
. accordance with the Charities Statement of Recommended Practice, (Charities SORP (FRS102)), and the
Academies Accounts Direction, these grants are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities as restricted
income in the fixed asset fund. The restricted fixed asset fund balance is reduced by annual depreciation
charges over the expected useful life of the assets concemed.
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Strategic report (continued)
.Achievements and pérformance (continued)

As at 315 August 2021 fund balances were as follows:

Fund : Category 2021 2020
. ) : (£°000) (£°000)

Unrestricted Unrestricted General Funds - 192 -
Total General Unrestricted Funds 192 -
GAG Restricted General Funds 158 (34)
Total General Restricted Funds 158 . 34
Unspent capital reserves ] Restricted Fixed Asset Funds 352 907
Total Spendable Funds 352 907
Net book value of Fixed Assets Restricted Fixed Asset Fund 18,585 18,127
Share of LGPS deficit Restricted Pension Reserve (6,929) (6,725)
Total All Funds 12,358 12,274

During the year-ended 31 August 2021, total expenditure of £8,922k (2020:.8,411k) was funded by recurrent
grant funding from the ESFA together with other incoming resources. The excess of income over expenditure
for the period (excluding restricted fixed asset funds and transfers to restricted fixed asset funds) was £493k -
(2020: £220k). At 31 August 2020 the net book value of fixed assets was £18,585k (2020: £18,127k)

In common with all academies and local authorities, the Trust has an ongoing commitment to its share of the
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) deficit. Whilst this is not a conventional liability, it docs need to be
reflected in the accounts, although it does not need to be deducted from spendable funds. The. Trust meets its.
obligations in respect of LGPS by paying over pension -contributions due as calculated by the scheme's
actuaries. As at 315t August 2021 the LGPS showed a deficit of £6,929k (2020: £6,725)

The Trust has appointed a Chief Financial and Operations Off icer (CFOOQ) and also has a separate Head of
Finance. . :

The CFOO maintains financial.policies, processes and control" to support the systems uscd to ensure effective
financial management. Monthly management accounts are produced for all schoole and arc compared against
the budget subritted to the ESFA. Reforecasts are undertaken when required. Together with the management
accounts, the Finance, Audit and Risk committee reviews the balance sheet and 12 month rolling cash flow
forecast on a monthly basis.

‘On an annual basis, the Finance, Audit and Risk committee receives and reviews longer term financial models
to inform strategic decision making.
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

. TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Strategic report (continued)

Financial Risk Management objectives and policies

Trustees have assessed the major risks to which the Trust is exposed. The Finance, Audit and Risk committee
review risk management arrangements, including a risk management strategy and a strategic risk register, each
term. The strategic risk register seeks to identify the likelihood of an event occurring, its impact, and any
mitigating actions that might be utilised to reduce or dissipate the risk where appropriate. Risks are categorised
under strategic, operatlonal compliance, financial, educational, well-being and safety. and reputational
headings.

The Trust has introduced a Trust wide risk management process covering a wide spectrum of areas in WhICh its
schools might face possible risk. This process provides trustees with a detailed understandmg of risk within
each school and offers the opportunity to spot trends and issues affecting the wider school populatlon This
information is then used to inform the consolidated risk register.

"~ Trustees acknowledge that they have overall responsibility for ensuring that the Trust has an effective and
appropriate system of controls'in place. The Board is also responsible for keeping proper accounting records
which comply with the Companies Act. The trustees also acknowledge responsibility for safeguarding the assets
of the Trust and for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities, for
example by the introduction of Multi-Factor Authentication logins to increase the security if the IT systems.

The Trust's system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management information and
- administrative procedures, including segregation of duties, monitoring of controls, training of staff and a system
of delegatuons and accountability.

The Trust's financial regulations manual provides instruction and guidance to trustees, Chairs of LGBs,
Headteachers, and staff, and ensures that each school within the Trust maintains and develops systems of
financial control which conform to the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management.

An internal audit function, provided by an external reviewer performing a range of checks on the Trusts internal
. control systems and procedures, provides further assurance to the trustees.

Reserves policy

The principal policy on reserves is that any accumulation of unspent GAG belanceé should not breach any limits
set out in the Funding Agreement. Each year the trustees review the resource requirements and grant and other
income that is forecasted for the coming year and an annual budget is formulated and approved.

The Trust recogmses the need to have sufficient reserves to protect its operations into the future and following
a period of financial recovery, it is now developing its Financial Sustainability Strategy, incorporating an updated
Reserves Policy. The strategy will seek to embed a culture of financial management that is open and
transparent and fosters positive relationships to ensure that the Trust's strategic aims are delivered..

At present, the aim of trustees is to carry forward a prudent leve! of reserves that will enable growth and support
schools within the Trust to flourish. To that end, the Trust aims to build over time a reserve of 3 tlmes its
monthly salary bill. .
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Investment policy -

Due to the hature. and timing of récelpt of funding, the Trust may at times hold cash balances surplus to its
. short-term requirements. Trustees are committed to ensuring that all funds under their control are managed in
such a way to maximise return whilst minimising risk.’

At present no long-term investments are held and surplus funds are held as readily accessible cash rather than.
on deposit. As part of the Fmancnal Sustainability Strategy, trustees will seek to formulate an mvestment strategy
to provnde a rate of returnina rlsk adverse manner. ’
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'AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

~ ~TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Principal risks and uncertainties

All major risks to which the Trust is exposed are detailed in the risk register that is reviewed by Finance, Audit
-and Risk committee and the Trust Board. Robust policies and procedures are in place to mltlgate and manage-
risk across the Trust

The principal risks of the Trust have been identified as:

e Financial -~ the Trust is reliant on the continued government funding through the ESFA. There is no
assurance that the government policy or practice will remain the same. Moreover, it remains the fact that
despite the National Funding Formula, the funding levels for secondary pupils in Worcestershlre is less per
pupil per year than in other areas within the West Mldlands .

The savings and efficiencies recognised during the year and the improved management information and
controls put in place manage, in so far as is possible, the impact of this nsk R ’

Due to the limited exposure to financial instruments (bank balances, debtors and creditors), trustees consider
the associated risk in this area to be minimal. ¢ ;

The risk resuiting from the Trust's share of the LPGS deficit is managed by following the advice of the scheme's
actuaries,. specifically in relation to the level of contributions payable, ensuring that annual budgets reflect the-
actuarial advice. ) “ o .

"« Staffing — there is an on-going nationwide shortage of qualified teachers. This is impacting the Trust’s ability
to recruit and retain quality staff. The Trust is mindful of the impact of workioad on staff well-being, .
particularly in’light of the on-going pandemic, and has taken steps to support this through the use of well-
being surveys and other forms of support, for example, the introduction of an Employee Assistance
Programme. Trustees remain mindful of the increased risk in this area.

¢ Buildings and facilities — the estate is aging and although sngnlﬁcant investment has been made in recent
times, ensuring that the estate under the control of the Trust remains safe, secure and compliant presents

an on-going risk. Estates improvement is supported primarily through planned School Condition Allocation™ '

(CIF,"DFC) spending. Additionally, Pershore High School has been included in the |n|t|al tranche of the
Schools Rebuilding Programme. The DfE are currently finalising the scope of the pro;ect but it is
anticipated that a considerable amount of funding will be made available to |mprove and future proof the
estate at Pershore High School.

Trustees have implemented a Trust wide risk management process to assess the nsks faced by its schools and
to determine how these are being mitigated. Considerable additional work was *undertaken around risk
assessment and management following the national restrictions in light of COVID 19. In advance of reopening,
all schools revisited their risk assessments and implemented processes and procedures to mitigate’ I'ISkS ‘
associated with the transmission of the virus. Monitoring remains live and continual. - ‘
A material risk for the Trust in relation to the defined pension scheme has been mitigated as parliament has
agreed at the request of the Secretary of State for education to guarantees in the event of an academy closure
outstanding LGPS pension scheme liabilities would be met by the DfE. This guarantee came into force in July,
2013. e .,

it should also be noted that procedures are in place to ensure compliance with legislation to protect the heaith
and safety of staff, pupils and visitors across the Trust.
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST.

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Fundraising

The Trust continues to develop its fundraising plan which will set out its aims and demonstrate how these aims
link to its values. The plan will conform to the Charities SORP and the guidance issued by the Charities
Commission in relation to fundraising. During the accounting period, ‘the Trust did not operate a formal
fundraising programme in_conjunction with any commercial or professional fundraisers. Similarly, the Trust does
not subscribe to any voluntary fundraising schemes or standards and does not have any commercial third party
fundraising on its behalf requiring monitoring in relation to vulnerable people, unreasonably intrusive or
persistent fundraising approaches, or undue pressure to donate.

Schools in the Trust do benefit-from occasional volunteer fundraising by associated parent/fnends and similar
groups. Opportunities for fundraising activities have been adversely impacted by the restrictions imposed
throughout the pandemic. Similarly, donations have dropped off dunng the period as families felt the impact of
the restrlctlons on their household income.

The Trust.has not received any formal complaints in respect of its fundraising activities.
Plans for future periods

To achieve its vision, the Trust will continue to build upon its reputation’for outstanding teaching and iearning.
To facilitate this, it will ensure that all pupils are able to equally access all areas of school life, including pastoral
support, and that pupil voice is heard-and has an impact. in addition, it will continue to ensure excellent learning’
"“through its rigorous programme of Learning Walks: and formal Lesson Observations, based on the stringent
Ofsted criteria.

The Trust will continue -to work with other local schools, in particular,. those schools aspiring.or considering
joining .a multi academy trust. The Trust will also continue to work with the DfE*and the Regional Schools
Commissioner, particularly in light of the outcome of the public consultatton currently underway in respect of the
Pershore Area Review.

In line with its strategic plan, the Trust Board will create a road map for growth. A considered and controlled
“approach is being taken to ensure that the Trust is in the best position to welcome new schools.

The Trust will develop its Financial Sustainability Strategy, incorporating. Key Performénce Indicators to inform
- -decision making, to support its aims for growth and future investment.

Funds held as custodian on behalf of others

The Trust ddes not hold any funds-as custodian trustee on behalf of others.

Disclosure of information to auditors

Insofar as the trdstees are aware:

. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditors are unaware, and
. that Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

. TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

The Trustees' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
icompany directors, on'9 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

:And'r'ew Longdon
‘Chair of Trustees
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‘AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

GOVERNANGE STATEMENT

‘Scope of responsibllrty

As Trusteeés, we ‘acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ehsuring that: Avonreach /\cademy Trugt has an.
effective.and appropriate . system of control, financial-and otherwise. However such a system. is de5|gned to
manage rather than eliminate:the risk of failure to.achieve business objectives, and can provrde only reasonablev
-and not’ absolute assurance: agamst material mnsstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have teéviewed and -takén: account ‘of the gundance in DfE's Governance Handbook and
‘competency framework for .governance..

The: Board of Trustees has de!egated the day-to-day responsrblllty to the Executlve Officer, as. Accountmg‘
- Officer; ‘for : ‘@nsuring financial controls conform’ with thé. requirements-6f both propnety and good fi inancial
management and in ‘accordance with the requiréments-and responsibilities assigned to it in the fundmg
agreement between Avonreach Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also
- responsible for reportnng to. the Board of Trustees any matenal weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' report and in the
Statement of Trustees' responsibilities: The Board of Trustees has formally met 7 times during the year.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board-of Trustees was as follows;

Trustee : - . Meetingé atté_nded Out of a possible

Andrew Longdon, (Chair) (Diocesan) 6 7

Rob Phillips, (Vice Chair) 7 7
Penelope Anstey: 6 7
Rachel Callaghan ) 7 7

Clive Corbett, (Executive Officer and Accounting 3 3
‘Officer) ,
lan Cumming 4 7 :
Julia Hayes 1 1

Karen Rutter 7 7

Mark Slater 7 7

-Bob Stanton 5 7

In line with the Handbook, the Trust has made further changes to its governance structure to ensure separation - -

. between tiers of governance. Members are no longer permitted to serve on LGBs and-Local Governors are not
permitted to serve as trustees. Additionally, the Executive Officer, whilst in attendance at all Trust Board -
meetings, is no longer a trustee. .

'i_'he annual skills audit identified the need for specific éxperience in the secondary phase. The Trust is activeiy
seeking to appoint a Trustee with this experience.

The Board has continued to focus on the financial recovery of the Trust and on the effective delivery of the
.curriculum ‘under the unprecedented circumstances created by the on-going pandemic, with meetings taking
place on-line. The work of the Board has been informed by comprehensive and timely financial management
information and regular updates of the agreed recovery plan. ’ '

The Board has reflected on the Trust's governance structure.and has consulted on improvements to the current
arrangements in order to remove duplication and to facilitate prompt decision making. The newly adopted Circle
Method of Governance arrangements remove committees at school level and managing school business at 6
full governing body meetings.per year, each with a focus on either finance or carriculum. This has necessitated .
-a review of the scheme of delegation and the terms of reference for Board committees and LGBs. ' :

In light of the restrictions, it has not been possible for trustees to meet together as planned to formally review
and update the action plan created following the review of governance carried out in July 2019, However, it is
the intention of the Board to hold another “Away Day” event as soon as restrictions allow..
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued).

The Finance Audit & Risk Committee

The Finance, Audit & Risk committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to
ensure the financial robustness of the Trust, to-monitor financial performance against budget and to ensure
financial propriety through the audit of the Trust's systems and controls.

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Trustee . Meetings attended ~ Out of a possible
Bob Stanton 6 6
-Karen Rutter 5 6
lan Cumming 6 6
Andrew Longdon 3 6
2 2

.Clive Corbett

. Review of value for money

As Accounting Officer, the Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy delivers good
value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the
educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

" The Accountnng Officer considers how the Academy’s use of its resources has provided good value for money

during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved,
including the use of benchmarkmg data where appropriate. The Accountmg Officer for the Academy has
delivered improved value for money during the year by

Ensuring the effective use of resources:

fesources are targeted at school improvement priorities, for example, through the implementation of
common data collection systems to facilitate the review and moderation of educational outcomes and
support school development priorities

. on-going review of procurement to achieve better quality and economies of scale in relation to the purchase

of goods and services
estate is maintained in a good state of repair and is compliant with rélevant legislation to ensure suntablhty

and safety for pupils to achieve best outcomes.

Ensuring ﬁnancial effectiveness:

sufficient expertlse is available to challenge on ensuring value for money If required consuilting professronal
experts to advise on financial aspects ’
timely financial management information highlight significant variances to budget allowing individual schools
and the Board to take remedial action

focus on greater level of transparency and challenge on school budgets, including longer term planning
around schools with investment needs, and those with financial challenges, using benchmarking, and other
data, as a model for improvement

" Page 20



AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on-an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood
of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively
and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Avonreach Academy Trust for the year 1
September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and fi nancual o
statements. ..

C_apacity to handle risk -
The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is
of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy's
significant risks that has been in place for the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of
Trustees.

B The _ris'k and control framework

The Academy Trust's systems of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures mcludlng the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
. accountability. In particular, it includes:. .

. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic ﬁnancual reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees

. regular reviews by the Finance Audit & Risk Committee of reports which indicate fi nancial performance
against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expendnture programmes

* .. setting targets to measure fi nancnal and other performance

. cleariy ‘defined’ purchasmg (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines .

J identification and management of risks

The Board of Trustees considered the need for a speciﬂ'c internal audit function and have chosen to work with a
range of professionals, including external audit firms and SRMAs, to facilitate a system of internal audit for the’
period 1% September 2020 to 31t August 2021.

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial and other matters and performing a range of
checks on the Trust's fi nanmal and other systems. In the current period reviews have mcluded

VAT : k
Self-generated income

Procurement :

IT services, including cyber security

On an annual basis, the reviewer reports to the Board of Trustees through the Finance, Audit & Risk committee
on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees' financial
responsibilities and annually prepares a short annual summary report to the committee outlining the areas
reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess
year on year progress.
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The risk and control framework (continued)

Due to the pandemic the internal - ..cruttny plan for the period could not be fully completed due to visits being -

ssuspended. However, alternative work has been completed .in the interim and was sufficient to confirm that

there wore no material control issues during the period and that.on-going work to opcrate the systems of
mternal control were. suff ctent undér the prevailing cnrcumstances

Review of effectivehess

‘Ac Accountmg Officer, the Executuvc Officer has pOﬂSIblllty for rewewmg the effectweness of tho system of

internal control. Dunng the yéarin questlon the revnew has been mformed by

the work of the reviewer:

the work of the externai auditors; :
"'the financial manageient and governance self-assessment process;

the school resource management self-assessment tool;

the work of the Chief Financial Officer who has responslbthty for the development and maintenance of the
internal control framework; :
feedback from the Chaif of the Finance, Audit. and Risk commlttee

The Accountlng Officer has been advised of the’ |mpl|cat|ons of the result of their review of the system of internal

control by the Finance, Audit & Risk commlttee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure contmuous

-|mprovement of the system is'in place

Ap’piox/ed by order-of the' members’of the Board of Trustees on'9 December 2021 and signed on their behalf by:

Andrew Longdon ' . Clive Corbett

Chairof Trustees o . ‘Executive Officer
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

"STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As Accounting Officer of Avonreach Academy Trust | have considered my responsnblhty to notlfy the Academy’
Board of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and
non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the Academy, under the funding agreement
in place between the Academy and the Secretary of Stateé for Education. As part of my consideration | have had
:due regard to the requirements of the Academies Firiancial Handbook 2020

l confirm that | and the Academy Board of Trustees are able to identify any material trregular or improper use of
all funds by the Academy, or material non—comphance with the terms and conditions of funding under the.
Academy‘s funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2020: A

I confirm that no instances of materlal lrregulanty. lmpropnety or funding non-compllance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are ldentnﬁed after the date of this statement, these wil be riotified ‘to the Board of

ATrustees and ESFA.

. Clive Corbett
Executive Officer
‘Date: 9 December 2021
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

The trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
‘responsible for preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law,
the trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and the charitable company and of their incoming resources and
application of resources, including their income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, the trustees are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
observe the methods and principles of the Chamles SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction

2020 to 2021;

. make judgmerits -and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

;- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have, been followed subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explamed in the financia! statements; - P

'3 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is mappropnate to presume that the
group will continue in busnness '

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain-
the Group and the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
~financial position of the Group and the charitabic company and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other |rregulant|es

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in their conduct and operation the Group and the charitable
company apply financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good
financial management. They are also responsnble for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been
applied for the purposes intended..

‘The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the group's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination
of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Appvroved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 9 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

2

Andrew Longdon
Chair of Trustees-
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST .

lNDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
' -AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST . S

Opinion

We -have audited the financial statements of Avonreach Academy Trust (the 'parent Academy') and its
subsidiaries {the 'Group) for the year ended 31 August 2021 which comprise the Consolidated statement of
financial activities, the Consoludated balance sheet, the Academy balance sheet, the Consolidated statement of
cash flows and the rélated notes, mcludmg a summary of significant accounting policies: The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in'their preparation is applicable law, United.Kingdom Accounting ‘Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounhng Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The
Financial Reporting Standard-applicable'in the UK and Republic of Ireland',-the Charities SORP:2019 and the
. Academies Accounts’ Dlrectlon 2020 to 2021 issued by the Education and Skills Fundmg Agency

In our opinion the financial statements

o glve a’true and’ “fair view of the state of the Group's and of the parent Academy's affairs as at 31 August

: 2021 and of the Groups incoming resources and application of ‘resources, mcludlng its income and
expenditure for the year then ended;

e, 'have been’ properly prépared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted. Accountmg
Practice; and

e . 'have been preparéd in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act:2006, the Charities’
SORP 2019 ‘and :the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by theEducation and Skills
Fundmg Agency. .

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsnbllmes Under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for.the audit
- of the financial statemenits Section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
ethical. requiremients that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United’ ngdom including
, the Financial Repomng Councnl’s Ethical Standard and we have fulﬁlled our other ethlcal responsubllltles in

Conclusions relating to g‘oing concern

In audmng the fi nancnal statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the gomg concern basis of
accountmg in the preparatuon ‘of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, mduvudually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group's or the parent Academy's
ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements
are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST (CONTINUED)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual report other than the financial
statements and our Auditors' report thereon." The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained
within the Annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
- conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is- materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course
of the audit, or ot{he_‘n/vlse appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsisténcies or
- apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material
misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is .a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

in our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared.is consistent with the financial statements.
D the Trustees' report and the Strategic report have been prepared in accordance with applrcable legal

requirements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Croup and thc parent Academy and its environment
obtained in the course of the audlt we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report
including the Strategic’ report

We have nothing to report .in. respect of the following matters in relation to which the Compames Act 2006
requnres us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. the parent Academy has not kept adequate accounting records, or returns-adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

. the parent Academy financial statements are not in agrecment with the accountmg recorde and returns;
or .

. _certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law.are not made; or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our'aud'it.
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
: AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST (CONTINUED)

‘Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Trustees' responsibilities ‘statement, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the Academy for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
:and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Group's and the parent
Academy's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing; as applicable, matters related to going concern
.and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Group or the
parent Academy or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial stateme_nts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from_material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' report that includes our

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
“accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
- from fraud. or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance -with laws and regulations. We design
procedures’ in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
ifregularities, includlng fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities,
. including fraud is detailed below: - : :

¢ we obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Multi
Academy Trust.These include but are not limited to compliance with the Companies Act 20086, the Charities
.SORP, the Academies Accounts Direction, UK GAAP and tax legislation; '
we agreed the financial statement disclosures to supporting documentation;
we made enquiries of management; and
we reviewed board minutes throughout the year.

A further description of our responsibiliﬁes for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities: This descnptlon forms part of our
Auditors’ report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy and its
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF

AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST (CONTINUED)

G P

Ryan Moore CA (Semor statutory audltor)

‘for and on behalf of
‘Randall & Payne LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

{Chargrove;House
‘Shurdington ﬁoad _

 ‘Shurdington

. Chelténharfi
‘Gioucestershire

© GL514GA

 9'Decembeér 2021
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO
AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 2 August 2019 and further to the requirements of
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to
2021, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by Avonreach Academy Trust during the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have
been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities
which govern them.

This report is made solely to Avonreach Academy Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Avonreach Academy Trust'and
ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Avonreach Academy Trust and ESFA
for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Avonreach Academy Trust's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Avonreach Academy Trust's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated December 2014 and the Academies Financial
‘Handbook, extant from 1 September 2020, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

" Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have not been applied to purposes

intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them. ‘

Approach

We conducted our engagement in aécbrdance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
- defined in our engagement letter. .

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provude us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regulanty

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
.might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

\

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basas of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of
the Academy's income and expenditure.

» - We review consistency with value for money principles in the period;
s We assess compliance with relevants laws and regulation;
s We assess the safeguarding of public funds and assets.
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO
"~ AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

Conclusion ' ' .

In-the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the‘
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 has not been
applied to purposes mtended by Parliament-and the financial transactions do not conform to'the authorities:
which govern them.

5

Chartered Accounta’nt_s and Statutory Auditors

bate: q December 2021

Page 30



AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND
EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted  fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2021 . 2021 ' 2021 2021 2020
Note £000 £000 - £000 £000 . £000
Income from '
Donatuons and'ca |tal . :
Other trading activities ' 405 - - oL 408 547
Charitable activities - 9,008 - - : 9,008 7,948
" 405 - 9,018 161 9,584 10,908
Total income ;
Expenditure on:
Raising funds 9 - . 9 11
Charitable activities 8 - 8,994 366 9,360 9,036
Total expenditure 8 8,994 : 366 9,369 9,047
Net ,
income/(expenditure ‘
, . 396 24 (205) 215 - 1,861
Transfers between .
" funds 18 (204) 95 - 109 - -
- Net movement in ’
funds before other '
recognised : - -
gains/(losses) : - -192 119 . (96) . 215 1,861
Other recognised ’ : o
gains/(losses):
Actuarial losses on
defined benefit ) '
pension schemes 24 - (134) - (134) (1,743)
Net movement in 192 (15) (96) 81 118
funds :
Reconciliation of
funds: '
Total funds brought
forward _ S 16 (6,773) 19,033 12,276 12,158
Net movement in :
funds 192 (15) (96) -8 118
Total funds carried 208 (6,788) 18,937 12,357 12,276
forward ‘ .

The Consolidated statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (lNCORPORATlNG INCOME AND
EXPENDITURE-ACCOUNT) (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

“The notéson pagés 3810 68 form part of thése financial stateéments.
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST
. REGISTERED NUMBER: 07665364

‘ CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 AUGUST 2021

Unrestricted income funds

Total funds’

Note

. Fixed assets
Tangible assets * - 15
Current assets

~ Debtors 16

. Cash at bank and in hand
Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year 17
Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Net assets excluding pension liability
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 24
Total net assets

. “Funds of the Academy
Restricted funds:
Fixed asset funds _ 18
Restricted income funds 18
Restricted funds excluding pension asset 18
Pension reserve 18
Total restricted funds 18

18

2021
£000
18,587
18,587
444
963
1,407
(707)
700
19,287
19,287
(6,929)
12,358
18,937
158
19,095
(6,929)
12,166
192
12,358

2020
£000
18,128
18,128
-1,017°
891
1,908
(1,037)
871
18,999
18,999
(6,725)
12,274
19,033
(34)
18,999
(6,725)
12,274
12,274
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07665364

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2021 = -

" The financial statements on pages 31 to 68 were approved by the Trustees, and authonsed for |ssue on 09
December 2021 and are sugned on their behalf, by .

Andrew Longdon . L Clive Corbett
Chair of Trustees » ' Executive Officer

The notes on pages 38 to 68 form part of these financial statements. |
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07665364

' ACADEMY BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2021

Total funds

. : Note
Fixed assets
Tangible assets K o A 15
Current assets

* Debtors - 16
‘Cash at bank and in hand
Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year 17
Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Net assets excluding pension liability
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 24
Total net assets
Funds of the Academy
Restricted funds:
Fixed asset funds 18
Restricted income funds 18
Restricted funds excludi'ng pension liability 18
Pension reserve. 18
Total restricted funds 18
Unrestricted income funds. 18

2021

£000
18,587
18,587
444
949
1,393
(707)
686
19,273
19,273
(6,929)
12,344
18,358
63
18,891
(6,929)
11,962
382
12,344

1,021
875

1,896

(1,039)

19,033

(48)

18,985
(6,725)

2020
£000

18,128

18,128

857

18,985

18,985

(6,725)

12,260

12,260

12,260
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‘AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07665364

‘ ACADEMY BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2021

The financial statements ‘on pages ‘311068 were approved by the' Trustees, and authonsed for lssue on 09
December 2021-and are sugned on thelr behailf, by: .

Andrew Longdon ' _ , e Clive Corbett

‘The notes on'pages 38 to 68 form pait of these finaricial statéments.
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-. AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

: Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by/»(u,Sed‘in) operating activities ~ 20
Cash flows from investing éctivities . 21
Chér;ge in cash and cash equivalénts in the year

+ .Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash eﬁuivalents at the end of the year 22,23

The notes on pages 38 to 68 form part of these financial statements

2021

2020

£000 £000
. 736 (196)

(664) 604

72 408

. 891 ,4é3

" 963 891
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1.

Accounting policies

11

A s‘hmmary of the principal .accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,

-except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Group, which is a public benefit eﬁtity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard

.Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) the Accountmg and Repomng by Charities:

Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to-charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)

' (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by ESFA, the

1.2

Charities Act 2011 and the Companles Act 2006.

‘The Consolldated statement of financial  activities (SOFA) and Consolidated balance sheet
‘consolidate the financial statements of the Academy and its subsidiary undertaking. The results of
the subsidiary are consolidated on a line by line basis. -

The Academy has taken advantage of the exemption allowed under section 408 of the Companies
Act 2006 and has. not presented its own Statement of financial activities in these fnancnal'

:statements.

Go“irig‘conce_rn .

- The: 'Trus‘tees ass'ess whether the use of going concet;n is appropriate i.e. whether there are-any

material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Academy to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a

period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and

have concluded that the. Academy has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for

the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy's ability -to

continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in-:
preparmg the financial statements. .
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1.

Accounting policies (continued) -

1.3

14

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Group has‘entitlement’ to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably. '

Legacies

The recognition of incomé from legacies is dependent on estabhshmg entitiement, the probabmty of
receipt and the ability to estimate with sufficient accuracy the amount receivable. Evidence of
entitiement to a legacy exists when the Group has sufficient evidence that-a gift has been left to
them. (through knowledge of the existence of a- valld will and the death of the benefactor) -and the
executor is satisfied that the property in questlon ‘will not be required to satisfy claims in the estate
Receipt of a legacy must be recognised when it is probable that it will be received and the fair value
of the amount receivable, which will generally be. the expected cash amount to be distributed to the
Group, can be reliably measured.

Grants

Grants are included in the Consolidated statement of financial activities on a recelvable basns The
balance of income received for specific purposes but not expended dunng the period is shown in the
relevant funds on the Balance_sheet. Where income is réceived in advance of meeting any
performance-related conditions there is not. unconditional entitlement to the income and its
récognition is deferred and.included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related
conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the i income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Consolidated statement of financial activities in the

year for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and .

recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognlsed in full when there is an unconditional entitiement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are- not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.

Donations-
Donations are recogmsed on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Expenditure

Expenditure .is recognlsed once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic
benefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in
settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by
activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs,
including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single
activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity

“and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those

activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the
basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

Expenditure on raising funds

This includes all expendlture incurred by the Group to raise funds for |ts charitable purposes and'
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non- chantable trading. .
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

'NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

AccOu’riting policies (continued)

1.4

1.5

1.6

Expenditure (continued)

. Charitable activities

These -are costs incurred on the Group's educational operatnons including support costs and costs
relating to the-governance of the Group apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT,

Interest receivable

_ Interest on funds held on depbsnt is included when receivable and the amount can be measured

refiably by the Group, this is normally upon nofification of the interest paid or payable by the
mstltutaon with whom the funds are déposited.

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £500 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are-carried at cost, net of '
depreciation and any provision for impairment. ’

Where tangible fixed assets have beén acquured with the aid of specuf ¢ grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and

. depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there-are specific conditions. attached

" to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restncted

1.7

fixed asset fund in, the Consolidated statement of financial activities and carried forward in the.
Balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset
fund in the Consolidated statement of financial activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been
acquired W|th unrestricted funds, deprecuatlon on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Deprematlon is -provided, on ‘all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under

‘construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its -

expected useful life, as follows:

‘Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Leasehold property L ~~ 50vyears
Furniture and fixtures - - 10% straight line
Computer equipment . - - 33% straight line

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate

"that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying '

value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Consolidated statement of financial activities. :

Debtors

‘Trade and other debtors are recogmsed at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered

Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

Page 40 -



AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Accouhting policies (continued)

18

1.9

Casﬁ at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short

. maturity of three months or less from the date of acqu;smon or opening of the deposnt or similar

account.
Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settiement, and the.

.amount of the'settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the

Group anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received'as advanced payments
for the goods or services it must provnde

\

1.10 Financial instruments

.The Group only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and

financial liabilities of the Group and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and .other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 16. Prepayments are not financial instruments.
Amounts due to the Academy’s wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

" Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument 'and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 17. Taxation and social security are not included in.
the financial ‘instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial
liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services
rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due to the Academy's wholly owned
subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1.

* Accounting policies (continued)

1.11 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Group are provided by the. Teachers' Pension Scheme
("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

‘The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as tos cproad the cost of

pensions over employees’ working lives with the Group in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospéctive
unit credit method. TPS is.an unfunded muiti-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multt-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Group in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least
triennially and are updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus
are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settiements

and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
‘benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Consolidated statement of financial activities and
‘eomprises the intcrest cost on the defined bencfit obligation and interest income on the scheme -

assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period

:by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on

the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised
gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

1.12 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of
the charitable objects of the Group at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capltal purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acqu:red or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other reatricted funds reccuvod with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.
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AVONREACH ACADEM_Y TRUST

"NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on histoficél experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
~ circumstances. .

N

Critical accounting estlmates and assumptnons

The Academy makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resumng accounting
‘estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

.- The 'present value of the .Local Government Pension Scheme defined beneﬁt liability-depends on a .
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis usnng a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in detérmining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate.. Any
changes in-these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 24, will impact the ‘carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the Ia_test full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31

: August 2021. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
‘actuarial valuation would nmpact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Incoine from donations and capital grants

Restricted

Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021
£000 £0_00 £000
Donations ' 10 - 10
Capital Grants L - 120 - 120
Grants 4 ‘ 4 o 4 4
10 161 171
Restricted
Restricted - fixed asset Total
funds funds funds -
2020 2020 2020
£000 £000 £000
Donations : ) 128 - ] 128
Capital Grants - 2,245 2,245
Grants o » - 40 40

128 2,285 2,413
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Ffdnding for the Academy's educational operations direct

Restricted = - Total
funds. funds
2021 2021
o £000 £000
DfE/ESFA grants S . . ‘
'General Annual Grant . ' _ 7,535 7,535
‘Other DfE/ESFA grants ‘
Rates Reclaim ' o ' , 45 . 45
Pupil Premium and Service Premium- A : '269 - 269
Universal Infant Free School Meals (UIFSM) ; . . - 82 82
'PE 'and Sports Grant. : 52 52
Other DfE and ESFA S _ 634 634
LA - Specaal Educatlonal Needs (SEN) ] : 310 310
Other LA Révenue Grants . 81 . 81
9,008 9,008
Restricted Total
funds ‘funds
2020 2020
_ £000 £000
DfE/ESFA grants . ,
General Annual Grant o : ' 6,888 ' 6,888
Other DfE/ESFA grants ’ -
Rates Reclaim ‘ , , IR 33 33
Pupil Premium and Service Premium- 233 - 233
_ Universal Infant Free School Meals (UiFSM) ~ . 81 - 81
PE and Sports Grant _ ) 51 : 51
Other DfE and ESFA : 4 ‘408 . 408
LA - Special Educational Needs (SEN) o 170 - 170
Other LA Revenue Grants o - 84 84

7,948 7,948

Following the reclassification in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020/21 of some grants received from
the Department of Education and ESFA, the group's funding for Universal Infant Free School Meals and
Pupil Premium is no longer reported under the Other DfE Group grants heading, but as separate lines
under the Other DfE/ESFA grants heading. The prior year numbers have been reclassified.

Included within Other DfE and ESFA income is £30k claimed in respect of COVID-related exceptional
costs, £120k of COVID catch-up funding and £49k of other grants, including mass testing and additional
free 'school meal costs
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'AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

" 'FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Income from other trading activities

Music tuition
Hire of facilities
Catering income.

Trading recharges

' Other income

Total 2021

Music tuition
Hire of facilities
Catering income
Trading recharges
‘Other income

Other trading income

Total 2020

Total

‘Uknrestl_'i_cted ‘
funds funds
2021 - 2021

£000 £000

4 4

15 15

_ 273 213
T 33 33
80" 80

© 405 405
Unrestricted Total
funds funds
~:2020° 2020
'£000 £000

13 13

9 9

299 - - .299

29 29

173 7 173

24 24

547 547

Other tradlng income has beén shown in this rote for the first time in the penod .in order to enable

comparabulnty following the absorbtion of trading activities into the Trust.

Investment income

Investment income amounted to iéss than £1,000 in both pefiods and as'such, is not presented in these
rounded ﬁnanmal statements. :
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"AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Expenditure

Expenditure on fundraising trading activities:

Direct costs
Educational Operations

Direct costs
Allocated support costs

Expenditure on fundraising trading activities:

Direct costs
Educational Operations

Direct costs
" Allocated support costs

Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities

Summary by fund type

Staff Costs Premises Other Total
2021 2021 2021 2021
£000 £000 . £000 £000

- 7 2 9
5,749 - 465 6,214
1,356 1,051 739 3,146

7,105 1,058 1,206 9,369
Staff Costs Other -Total
2020 2020 2020

£000 £000 £000

- 11 11

5,509 410 5,919
1,442 1,675 3,117
6,951 2,096 9,047
Restricted Total

funds funds

2021 2021

£000 £000

9,360 9,360

Educational Operations
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

'NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities (continued)

Summary by fund type (continued)

_Educatidnal Operations-

Analysis of expenditure by activities

Activities
undertaken

directly -

2021
£000

Educational Operations 6,214

Activities

undertaken
directly

. 2020

£000

Educational Operations 5,919

Analysis of direct costs

Staff costs
Educational supplies
Examination fees
Technology costs

Restricted Total
funds funds
2020 2020
£000 £000
9,036 9,036

Support Total
"costs funds
. 2021 - 2021
.. £000 £000
- 3,146 . 9,360
Support Total
~ costs funds

-, .2020 2020
£000 £000
3,117 9,036
Total Total
funds . funds

... 2021 2020
£000 £000
5,749 5,509
. 293 283

109 96

63 31
6,214 5,919
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Anaiysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of direct costs (continued)
Analysis of support costs

Total Total

funds funds
2021 2020
£000 £000
Pension finance costs - : 115 | 81
Staff costs. . . ' : v 1,357 1,442
Depreciation ' ' ' ‘ 366 . 332
Other staff costs . ' . ) - 1
Insurance : . i 44 31
Technology costs - _ 9% 68
Other - ' 30 171
Maintenance of premises : : o 162 123
Cleaning and caretaking . 198 166
Rates 46 21
Energy- 133 118
Security ’ 2 1
Transport : - 25 23
Catering , , 257 278
Other premises costs ' ‘ - 145 87
Legal & professional ' ' 147 147
Auditor costs _ 23 27
3,146 3117
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

10.

1.

Net income/(expenditure)

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

2021 2020
£000 £000
Operating lease réntals 34 11
‘Depreciation-of tangible fixed assets 366 332
‘Fees paid to auditors for:
© - audit 13 13
~ other services 5 5
- Staff
a. Staff costs
‘Staff costs during the year were as follows:
Group Gqup- Academy '  Academy
2021 2020 2021 2020
: ‘ £000 £000 £000 £000
Wages and salaries f 5,363 5077 5,363 5077
Social security costs 460 443 460 443
Pension costs ' 1,271 1,420 1,271 1,420
7,094 6,940 7,094 6,940
Apprenticeship levy 11 11 11 11
7,105 6,951 - 7,105 6,951
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"AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

' NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021’

1.

' Staff (continued)

b. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the" Group and the Academy dunng the year was as

THE

-C. Highe'r pald staff

£60, 000 was!
Gfoup,
-2021
No.
in the band £60,001 -'£70,000 ' : 2
In'the band £70,001 - £80,000 ' - 1
Inthie band £80,001 - £90,000 3 ‘ .

In the band £90,001 - £100,000 , ' 1

d.'Key management personnel

follows:

Group - Group
2021 2020 .
- No. No.
. ‘Teachers - S . . ' 87 89’
Administration.and suppoit - ' 102 - 110

Management | | S -
195 210

‘The number of employees whose employee benef ts (excludlng employer .pension costs) -exceeded

‘Group
2020
‘No.

1

The key management personnel of the Academy comprlse the” trustees and the -senior management
team ‘as listed: oit page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including -employer pension

thelr services to the Academy was £460,106 (2020 - £41 7,355).

'contnbutuons ‘and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for
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AAVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

/NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Central services
The Group has provided the following central sefvicés to its academies during the year:

Financial services
Legal services
Procurement

HR support

IT support
Educational support

The Group charges for these services on the following basis:
* 73.25% of income

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows: A

2021 2020 -
. £000 -£000
Orchard Primary School ' o o 23 21
inkberrow Primary Schoof 19 - 17
Norton Juxta Kempsey Primary School 19 . 18
Pershore High School . 183 168
Total o B 244 224

Trustees’ r_e‘muneratibn,and‘expensesl
* ‘During the year, no Trustees received any remuneration or other benefits (2020 - £NIL).

During the year ended 31 August 2021, no Trustee expenses have been incurred (2020 -:'.{‘NIL).

Trustees' and Officers’ insurance

- In accordance with normal commercial practice, the Group has purchased insurance to protect Trustees
_ and officers from claims arising.from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy
- business. The insurance provides cover up to £3,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the year is.
not séparable from the RPA agreement.
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15.

‘Tangible fixed assets

Group

Costor valuation
At'1.September 2020
-Additions

Rounding

At 31 August 2021

‘Depreciation
At 1 'September 2020

‘Charge for the year

At 31 August 2021

Net book value

At 31 August 2021

At 31 August 2020

Academy

C'ost-br valuatioh
At 1 September 2020
‘Additions

Rounding

At 31 August 2021

Long-term Assets Furniture
leasehold under and  Computer o
property construction equipment equipment “Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
19,012 1,485 39 353 20,889
737 14 - 23 51 825
1 g - - o1
"19,750 1,499 62 404 21,715
2,395 . 21 346 2,762
337 - 6 23 366
2,732 . 27 369 3128
17,018 1,499 35 35 18,587
16,617 1,485 19 7 18,128
Long-term . Assets Furniture )
leasehold ~under and - Computer ‘
‘property .construction equipment  equipment Total
' £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
19,012 1,485 - 39 353 20,889
. 737 14 23 51 825
1 - . . C1
19,750 62 404 21,715

1,499
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15.

Tangible fixed assets-(continued) '

Academy (continued)

Long-term Assets Furniture :
leasehold under and  Computer o
property construction equipment equipment Total
£000 . £000 £000 £000 £000
Depreélation , .
At 1 September 2020 2,395 - ~ .21 346" 2,762
Charge for the year - 337 - 6 23 366
At-31 August 2_021‘, 2,732 . 27 . 369 - 3,128
Net book value
At-31 August 2021 17,018 1,499 35 35 18,587
At 31 August 2020 . 16,617 - 1,485 19 7 18,128

‘.lncluded in long-term leasehold property is land at valuation of £2,910,700 (2020: £2,910,700) which has
" not been depreciated.:

The freehold of the properties are owned by both the local authority, where the Trust lease the siteson a
the site on a. 2 year lease for nil

125 year lease for nil rental, and the Diocese, where the Trust lease
rental.

In accordance with the SORP the assets have been recognised in the academy trust's accounts, -

. representing the 'right to use' the property.
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16.

17.

Debtors

Due within one year

Trade debtors

Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income '

~Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors _
Other taxaﬁon and social security '

" Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

Group . Group Academy Academy
2021 2020 2021 - 2020
£000 . £000 £000 £000

9 9 9 14
17 33 17 32
418 975 418 975
444 1,017 444 1,021

Group Group Academy Académy
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000

408 768 408 772
258 235 258 235
- 20 - 20
41 14 41 12
1,037 - 707 1,039

707
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18.

Unrestricted

funds

General Funds

~all funds

Restricted
general funds

GAG -
Perision
reserve.

‘Restricted

fixed asset
funds

Fixed Assets

-Capital Grants

Devolved

‘Formula Capital

Orchard tfr from
unrestricted

Total
Restricted
funds

Total funds

;Staterﬁe‘nt of funds

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers . Gains/ 31 August
2020 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

- 405 (9) (204) - 192

(34) 9,019 (8,922) 95 - 158
(6,725) . (70) . ©(134) * (6,929)
(6,759) 9,019 - (8,992) 95 (134) (6,771)
18,126 . (366) 825 . 18,585
807 120 - (729) 198

100 . . 41 - (37) - 104

- . . 50 50

19,033 161 ' (366) " 109 N 18,937
12,274 9,180 (9,358) 204 (134) 12,166
12,274 9,585 -(9,367) - (134) 12,358

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

- The restricted general fund includes grants receivable from the ESFA, DfE, local '.authority and other

government grants to be used for the primary activity of the charitable company.

The fixed asset fund relates to the grants received and assets donated/transferred in and are held for the
charitable company's primary activity.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy was not subject to a limit on the
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18: v:s‘t’atemeh’t‘ of funds (continued)

amount of GAG it couid carry forward at 31 August 2021, -
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18.

Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in reépect of the preceding year is as follows:

‘Unrestricted .
funds

‘General Funds
. - all funds

‘Restricted

general funds

. GAG

Pension
reserve

Restricted
fixed asset
funds

Fixed Assets
Capital Grants

Devolved
Formula Capital

Total’
Restricted
funds

- Total funds

Balance at ) , Balance at
1 September . - Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2019 Income  Expenditure - infout (Losses) 2020

- £000 £000 £000° £000 £000 £000

- 547 - (11) -(536) - -

(254) 8,076 (8,411) 555 - (34)
(4,688) - - (294) - (1,743) (6,725)
(4,942) 8,076 (8,705) 555 (1,743) (6,759)
16,797 . (332) 1,661 - 18126
242, 2,245 - (1,680) - 807
60 40 - - - 100

17,099 2,285 (332) (19) - 19,033
12,157 10,361 (9,037) 536 (1,743) 12,274
12,157 10,908 (9,048) - (1,743) 12,274

—— | e St—————— ———————————— ettt
b———- B ]
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18.

Statement of funds (continued)
Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2021 were allocated as follows: -

2021 2020
£000 -£000
‘Orchard Primary School . , _— : 124 292
Inkberrow Primary School ' (31) (15)
Norton Juxta Kempsey Primary-School ' (29) (43)
Pershore High School 278 » (268)
Avonreach Academy Trust - . ' : 9 : -
Total before fixed asset funds and pension reserve 351 »(34)
Restricted fixed asset fund 18,937 19,033
Pension reserve - : . (6,929) (6,725)
Total . : 12,359 12,274

The following a_cadémies are carrying a net deficit on their portion of the funds as follows:

Deficit

£000
Inkberrow Primary Schod! , : (31)
Norton Juxta Kempsey Primary School : : (29)

The approval of in year deficit budgets at both Inkberrow and:Norton Juxta Kempsey primary schools -

followed rigorous scrutiny by trustees during the budget setting process. Trustees recognised the impact

of lagged funding in each case and set clear objectives to ensure that both schiools return to surplus
during the 21/22 financial year. The position is closely monitored via the monthly management accounts
review to ensure both schools remain on track to achieve their objective.
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‘_Statlementb of funds (continued)
Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:,

Teaching
and ' S
educational Other Other costs™ -
support support Educational excluding Total -
staff costs  staff costs supplies depreciation 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Orchard Primary School 678 72 20 120 -, 890
~ Inkberrow Primary Schoof 520 76 54 82 732
Norton Juxta Kempsey Primary ' - .

School 607 56 29 106 798
Pershore High School - 3,934 1,056 296 994 « 6,279
Avonreach Academy Trust oon 211 3 9 304
. Academy - 5,750 1,470 402 1,381 9,003

—_— e .| e e e
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48,

' Statement of funids (continued)

.Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as foliowS"';'

" Teaching

_and . o
educational Other ~_ Other-costs _
support $tafl - support staff  Educational” exciuding Jotal
_costs costs supplies: depreciation 2020
£000 £000° - £0000  £000 £000
‘Ofchard Primary School f 630 - 69 29 94 822
Inkberrow Primaty School - 454 67 51 8 656
Norton Juxta Kempsey Primary , o
School : 519 1) 36 100 706
Pershore. High-Sctiool . 3895 988 285 888 6,056
Avarireach Academy Trust - 295 - 180 475
Academy o 5498 1,470 4071 1,346 8,715
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19,

Analysis of net assets between funds

-Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

Restricted

Unrestricted ~ Restricted fixed asset Total

funds - funds funds funds

2021 2021 2021 2021

£000 £000 £000 ‘£000

Tangible fixed assets . - - 18,587 18,587
Current assets ' - T 192 865 350 1,407
Creditors due within one year ' - (707) - (707)
Provisions for liabilities and charges . - (6,929) - (6,929)
Total . : 192 (6,771) . 18,937 ' 12,358

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year .
Restricted

Restricted  fixed asset ‘Total

funds funds funds

2020 2020 2020

£000 £000 £000

Tangible fixed assets ' - 18,128 18,128
Current assets _ 1,001 - 907 1,908
"C{reditors due within one year , (1,037) . (1,037)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (6,725) z (6,725)
Total (6,761) - - 19,035 12,274
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20.

21.

22,

Reconciliation of net income to net cash flow from operating activities

Net income for the year (as per Statement of financial activities)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation. - A
.Capital grants from DfE and other capital income
.Defined benefit pensmn scheme cost less’ contnbutuons payable

Defined benefit pension scheme fir inance cost

" Defined benefit pension scheme admin expenses
_Decrease/(mcrease) in debtors
(Decrease)/increase in creditors,

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

‘Purchase of tangible fixed assets
‘Capital grants from DfE Group

Net~ca‘él’1‘ (used in)/provided by investing activities ’

-Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

‘Cash in hand and at bank

Total cash and cash equivalents

2021 2020
£000 £000
215 1,861
366 332
(161) (2,285) -
(51) . 208
15 81
6 5
594 (796)
(348) 398
736 (196)
Group Group
2021 2020
£000 -£000
(825) (1,681)
161 2,285
(664) 604
Group "Group
2021 2020
£000 £000
963 891 -
963 891"
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-23.

24.

Pension commitments

‘Analysis of changes in net debt

At1 ‘
September ' At 31
2020 Cash flows August 2021
-£000 £000 - .£000
Cash at bank and in hand o - 891 - 72 963
81 .. 72 963 .

© The Academy's employees belong to two principal pension schemes the Teachers Pensnon Scheme
England and Walés (TPS) for academlc and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Schemé

(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Worcestershire County Couricil. Both are. muiti-

.employer defined benefit schemes

The latest actuana| valuatlon of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31

March 201 9.

There were no outstandmg or prepald contnbutrons at either the begmnmg or the end of the ﬁnanc:al,

Year.

Teachers' Pensi’c‘m Scheme

The. Teachers‘ Pension Scheme (TPS) IS a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme governed by
the: Teachers' ‘Pension Scheme ‘Regulations 2014. Membership. is automatic for full-time teachers in

.academies. All teachers have theé option to opt-out of the TPS following enroimenit.

The. TPS is an. unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes. contributions, -as a -

’percentage of salary - these contnbutlons are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other penslon
'benef ts are paid by public funds provided by Parfiament. :
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24.

Pension commitments (continued)
Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the
TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions

" 2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specnfy the level of future.

contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design ‘of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at
31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019.
The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultatlon are:

. ‘employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy) ‘
e _ total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for

service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notlonal investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 mtlllon giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 mllllon
. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. Thé current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
_and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation resultis due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £986,000 (2020 - £828,000).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(https://www teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
Group has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contnbutlon scheme. The
Group has set out above the information available on the scheme

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the ycar ended 31 August 2021 was £722,000 (2020

"~ £368,000), of which employer's -contributions totalled £640,000 (2020 - £296,000) and employees'

contributions totalled £ 82,000 (2020 - £72,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 19.5
per cent for employers and 5.5-8.5 per cent for employees.

As described in note the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of .the Academy, who were the
employees‘transferred ‘as.part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who
were eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who
transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the
Academy at the balance sheet date.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013
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24,

Pension commitments (continued)

- Principal actuarial ‘assympﬁ_o,ns .

2021

: ‘ %

Rate of increase'in salanes o ' . . 4.2
Rate of increase for pensnons in paymentlmﬂatuon : 2.8
-Discount rate for.scheme liabilities ‘ ' ' 1.7

Inflation assqm,pt,ron,,(CPJ) . L 27

2020

-%

3.9
2.5,
24

The current-moitality assumptions include suff cient allowance for future improvements' m mortahty rates .

The assumed life: expectatlons on retirement age’65 are:

CPliate +0:1% - , 238

. 2021 2020
: Years _ Years
Retiring today . '
_Males : L 227 22.6
Females p . . ‘ 254 25 .
Retiring in 20 years
Males A _ o .. 244 24.2
Females o ' o a1 2
-Sehéitivity analysis. .
2021 2020 -
£000 £000
Discount rate +0:1% : (232) (202)
Mortality assumption -1 year increase. ‘ : 364 287
- 207
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24,

Pension commitments {continued)

Share of scheme assets

The Group's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Equities
Government bonds

- Corporate bonds

Property .
Cash and other liquid assets
Other

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was £674k (2020.- £50k).

The amounts recognised in the Consolidated statement of financial activities are as follows:

Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest income

Interest cost
Administrative expenses

Total amount»recbgnised in the Consolidated statement of financial
activities - - ) . '

2020

2021

£000 £000
3,866 2,216
- 225
5 178
205 181
116 141
456 420
. 4,648 3,361
2021 2020
£000 £000
(589) - (498)
- (6)

66 63 -
(181) (144)
(6) ()
(710) (590)
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2.

Pension commitments (continued)
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit lefgatign‘s were as follows:.
20212020
£000 .£000
‘At 1 September . o 10,086 8,023
‘Current service cost . ' - 4 . 589 . 498
interest cost - o 181 144
Employee contributions . e . 82 72
Actuarial losses ‘ : ' Co 742 1,434
Benefits paid , Y - o (103) (91)
Past service costs A o :. o - 6.
- At31 August ‘ o ‘ 14,577 10,086,
Changes'in the fair valle of the Group's share of scheme assets were as follows:
' 2021 2020
£000 £000
At 1 Septeriber , oL 3,361 3,335
Interest income . R ' ‘ 66 63
‘Actuarial gains/(losses) . ' ' : 608 (309)
‘Employer contributions , ' 640 296
‘Employee contributions. : . 82 72
Benefits paid . o - " (103) (91)
‘Administration expenses , : (6) " (5)
At31 August - e - 4648 3,361
’bperating lease commitments

At 31 August 2021 the Group and the Academy had commitments to make future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

. Academy Academy

2021 2020

£000 £000
Not later than 1 year - ' 40 34-
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years : 57 60
97 94
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26.

27.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the:

event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceedmg £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted.
beforé he/she ceases to be-a member.

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local

-public and private sector organisations, transactlons may take place with organisations in which the

trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with

‘the requirements of the Academigs Financial Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions

made-on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining thelr approval where required, and with the Academy's

-financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party
‘transactions.
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